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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Credit Wise Capital Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Statement of Cash Ilows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Iinancial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note No. 43 which gives the schedule of software under development (Intangible
Assets) and its ageing.

We draw attention to Note No. 44 which describes the company is in advanced stage of recovery of a Trade
advance.. Based on management assessment the Company has disclosed the aforesaid amount under Short
Term Loans and Advances as recoverable from the Dealer. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
that matter.

We draw attention to Note No. 45 which gives information on excess interest charged by a Lender on
borrowings and co-lending,.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management’s and the Board of Director for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies (accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the' Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As
part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriate es of accoun\n\g policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures ma ent.



SHAPARIA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES LLP Continuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up o the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

-

;6"":? mfb{matlon and according to the explanations given to us, the
ny, section 197 of the Act is not applicable.
MumBAl |

(g) In our opinion and to the best
Company being a private com
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) the management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c)Based on such audit procedures we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

(v) The company has not declared any dividend during the financial year, hence provisions of section
123 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply.

(vi) The company, in respect of financial years commencing on or after the 1st April, 2023, has used
such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all transactions
recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has
been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 112350W/ W-100051)

Sanjiv Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 034950
Mumbai,

UDIN: 24034950BKCBBS5978
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirement”
for the year ended March 31, 2024 we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable property held by the company. Therefore, clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable to the

company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment
or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i)  (a) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not hold any physical inventories
at the end of the year; accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limit of more than five crore
rupees from banks/ financial institutions on the basis of security of the current assets of the
company. As per information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the quarterly returns / statements filed by the company are based
on the reports generated from the Loan Management system (LMS). Accordingly, we have
matched the said statements with the quarterly LMS reports and found the same to be in line
with the reports.

(iii)  (a) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made and the terms and conditions
of the loans given are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC?), registered under provisions
of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of
the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its customers as stipulated.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans
and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and in cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest
is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its
periodic regulatory,z&portim
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(d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made
thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors and report total
amount overdue including principal and/or payment of interest by its customers for more than 90
days. According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are
taken by the Company for recovery thercof.

No of cases Principal Amount Interest Overdue Total Overdue
Overdue
1,771 2,99,99,065 98,88,722 3,98,87,787

(e) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provision of clause 3(iii)(e) is not
applicable to it,

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified
under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or
security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)  According to the information and explanation given to us, maintenance of cost records in not
applicable to the Company. Hence reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vii) (a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other applicable statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. There are no outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable except an amount of ESIC of Rs.
10,872.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the statutory dues referred to in the
sub-clause (a) are not involved in any dispute with the concerned department or authorities.

(viii) There are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961), hence accordingly, the reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to
financial institutions, banks or government or dues to debenture holders or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any other lender.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans from banks and financial institutions during the
year for the purposes for which they were obtained, other than temporary parking in bank account
for a few days at the end of the year, pending utilization towards purpose for which the same are
obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the year. Further, according to
the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(x)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the current financial year. Accordingly,
clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has made a preferential allotment of equity shares
during the year and requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
fulfilled. The funds raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised.

Nature of | Purpose for | Total amount | Amount Unutilised
Securities viz | which the funds | raised / opening | utilised for | balance as at the
Equity were raised unutilised other purpose | balance  sheet
shares/preference balance date

shares/

convertible
debentures
Equity Shares Business 10,00,00,000 Nil Nil
Expansion

(xi)  (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.
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complaints received during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as defined under section 406 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the companies Act, 2013, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transaction have been disclosed. Further, the provisions of
Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, though the company is required to have an internal
audit system under section 138 of the Act, it does not have the same established for the year.

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. Hence, no internal
audit reports were available for consideration.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company and accordingly it’s registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing finance activities without obtaining a valid CoR from
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (‘CIC”) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) As per information provided in course of our audit, the Company does not belong to any
group which has any CIC’s as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year under audit.

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date,-will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

1::'1\"\;‘ &4 -.\t(;“‘:\
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(xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Section 135 is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

(xxi) Reporting under Clause xxi of the order is not applicable at the standalone level of reporting.

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 112350W/ W-100051)

e

Asy 3\‘,
Sanjiv Mehta O“{»\I_}
Partner . MumeAl ||
Membership No. 034950 )
Mumbai, y ‘(\__:_\:_,r

UDIN: 24034950BKCBBS5978 Kooz
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls of Credit Wise Capital Private Limited (‘the Company’)
as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
vear ended and as at on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

5. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and disposition§
7
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Statements

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Disclaimer of opinion:

The Company uses for its loan disbursement a software by the name Allcloud which is a Loan
Management System (LMS). The financials of the company are maintained on the Tally software. The
Company on a regular basis tries to match the figure of loans disbursed in the LMS with the entries made
by them in the Tally software.

There appear to be small technical glitches in the LMS software which when the report for outstanding
loans disbursed is extracted does not match the outstanding loans disbursed in Tally.

The Company needs to strengthen its Internal financial controls regarding maintaining and accounting of
its loan disbursements, adjustments of non-recovery of loans and adjustments pertaining to recovery of
interest against NPA loans.

The company has decided to invest in a new software in the coming financial year which will resolve the
issues which arise currently in the LMS system.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information & according to the explanations given to us, except
for the possible effects of the weaknesses described in the above paragraph, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 112350W/ W-100051)

Sanjiv Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 034950
Mumbai,

UDIN: 24034950BKCBBS5978




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Balance Sheet As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Mote As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
No.
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
| |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|Shareholders’ funds
{a] Share capilal 3 7.619.54 7.091.08
(b) Heserves and surplus 4 3,236.88 1,14512
10,856.22 8,236.20
2|Non-current liabilities
{a) Lang-tarm borrowings 5 8.198.55 1147921
th) I ang-term provisions 6 156.12 161.37
8,354.67 11,640.58
3|Current hahilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 7 13.920.31 13.947 79
() Trade payables !
- Tolal putstanding dues ot micro and small enterprises 6.67 518
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 72.16 131.94
{c} Other currant iabilities 9 568 45 456 26
(d) Short-term provisions 10 360 74 o 18325
14,928.33 14,734.42
TOTAL 34,139.22 34,611.20
Il |ASSETS
1|Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant & equpmeants
i} Tangible assets 1 ita) 49 58 G108
() Intangible assets 11{b}) 307 39 apa 73
(i) Intangible assets under develo;ment 11icy - 928,99 9689 20
1.279.94 1.415.01
{b) Non Current Investment 12 3h0 72 -
fc) Deferred tax assets (net) 26 47 34 13.66
1o} Long-tenn loans and advances 13 11.423.76 16.068 61
(e} Other non-current assets 14 _ 1,170.17 149200 ]
14,266.92 16,989.28
2{Current assets
{a1) Gurregnt nvestments 15 - 22
{b) Cash and cash equivalents 16 1.821.82 1.842.24
{c} Shot4erm loans and advances 17 16,922.20 13 061,30
(i) Other cuiirant assets 18 112827 72615
19,872.29 15.621.91
TOTAL 34,139.22 34.611.20
|
Summary of significant accounting policies (Note = 1)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemerits
As per our report of even date
For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Beard of Direclois
Chartered Accountants
(FRN toe 112350W / W-100051) E
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

Particulars

REVENUE
Fevenue from operations
2 |Other income

-

3 |Total revenue

4 |EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Provisions and write-offs

Other expenses

Total expenses

5 |Profit ! (Loss) before tax

6 |Tax expense:

(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax

(c) Previous Year taxes
Total tax expense

7 |Profit/ (Loss) for the year

8 |Earnings per share (of * 10/- each):
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted
Nominal Value of equity shares (Rs./share)

Note For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
No. March 2024 March 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
19 9327 65 6,329 24
20 358.06 146.63
9,685.71 6,475.87
21 251925 1,678.35
22 3.191.82 2,118.17
23 103.82 38 86
24 1,076.89 643 47
25 2,565.60 1,833 66
9,457.48 6,312.50
228.23 163.37
54.63 13.12
26 -28.68 9.29
0.37 -13.12
26.32 9.30
201.91 154.07
0.28 0.22
0.28 0.22
10.00 10.00

Summary of significant accounting policies (Note 2 1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No: 112350W / W-100051)

Sanjiv Mehta
Partner
[Membership No. 034950

Place : MUMBAI
Date : 10-06-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aalesh Avlani
Director
DIN: 08570278

Vedl

Vatsal Bharat Gangar
Company Secretary
Membership No: A72322

Place : MUMBAI
Date : 10-06-2024
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Gurpreet Singh Sodhi
Director
DIN: 09791527
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
ity (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Met Profit/(Loss) before tax 228.23 163.37
Adjustments for
Gain on redemption of Mufual Funds -15.31 -13.76
Depreciation and amortisation expense 103 82 38 86
Provision an loans and advances 95.62 180.93
Provision for Gratuity 12.00 10 96
Loss on Intangible asset wrilten off - 7.00
Gain on sale of IAUD -15.04 .
Employee Compensation Expenses 8.37 12.77
Operating profit / {loss) before working capital changes 417.69 400,12
Movement in working capital
Aelpitments fo pcrease) decrease i oaperating gy
(Increase)/Decrease in loans 1,037.11 -13,057.79
{Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets -T43.18 -1,718.20
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-current assets 321.83 -
lefjmstmenis for nicrease (decrease) i uperoaiing ltabifites:
Increased/{Decrease) in Trade payables -58.29 87.20
Increased{Decreasa) in Cther current liabilities 112.19 188.79
Cash generated/{used in) from cperations 1,087.34 -14,099 88
Direct Taxes Received/(Paid) -33.47 -42.64
Net cash flow from Operating Activities (A) 1,063.87 -14,142.52
B. Cash flow From Investing Activities
Inter Corporate Deposits given -705.08 -300.00
Proceeds from repayment of Inter Corporate Deposits 485.00 300 00
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,935.53 1354
Purchase of Investments 227072 -
Purchase of tangible assets -8.85 -57.49
Investiment in Intangible Asset -110.17 -379.36
Sale of Intangible assets under development 185 41 -409.36
Net cash flow from Investing Activities (B) -508.95 -B32.67
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 240974 39.00
{Repayment)/Proceeds from Inter Corporate Deposits 4,308 00 2.850.00
{Repayment)/Proceeds from Inter Corporale Deposits -4, 158.00 -3,650.00
Proceeds from borrowings 12,232.31 23,018.01
Repayment of borrowings -15,69045 | -9.414.64
Net cash flow from Financing Activities (C) - - -898.40 12,942.38
Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) -353.49 -2,032.81
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,129.54 3,162.36
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 776.08 1,129.64
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash eqguivalents at the end of the year
- Cash on hand 111.96 2823
- Balance with banks
- In Current Accounts 414.10 798.66
- in_Ferm Deposits 250.00 302.66
Total Cash and cash eqguivalents {Note 16} 776.06 1,129.54

Notes:

1) The above cash flow statement have been prepared under the indirect methad set out in Accounting Standard (AS-3) 'Cash Flow Statement’ notified

2] All figures in brackets indicate outfiow.
3) Previous year's figures have been restated where necessary

As per our report of even date

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No: 112350W / W-100051)

Sanjiv Mehta
Partner
Membership No, 034950

Place : MUMBAI
Date : 10-06-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ao A0

Aalesh Avlani

Director Director
DIM: 0BE70278 DIN; D8791527

Vatsal Bharat Gangar
Company Secretary
Membership No: A72322

Place : MUMBAI
Date : 10-068-2024

yan "

Gurpreet Singh Sodhi




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

Credit Wise Capital Private Limited (the Company) is a Private Limited Company domicied in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
companies Act, 2013 The Company Is prmarily engaged in {he business of prowiding finance for Twa Wheeler Vehicles and ancillary services related to
the said business activity The Company is Non-Systematically Imporfant Non-deposit taking Mon-Banking Financial Company ("NBFCT), holding a
Certificate of Registration (“CoR") from tha Resarve Bank of India ("RBI") dated 28th November, 2018 under Seclion 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934

The ragistration details are as follows:

Reserve Bank of [ndia N-13.02286
Caorporate ldentity number (CIN) UG5990MH201 BP TC206086

2.Basis of Preparation of Accounts

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principies in India ("Indian GAAP") lo comply m all matenal respects with the notified Aceounting Standards ("AS") under section 123 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with relevant rules thare undar

The Company also follows direclons prescnbed by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") for Non-Banking Finance Company ("NBFC) All assels and
lisabail have been ¢ d as current and nor-current as per the Company's normal oparating cyele and other criteria sat oul in Schadule 1 of the
Acl The Company has ascertained its Operating cycle 1o be of 12 months for such classification

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the pravious year

218 y of significant g policies

A. Use of estimates.

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assel and hiabiibes and disclosure of contingant liabilities al the date of the financial statements and the
results of operations during the reparting year end. Although these estimates are based upon management's bast knowladge of current events and
actions, actual resulls could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to the accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in tha current and fulure
years,

B. Revenue/lncome Recognition
Revenue is recognized io the extent that it is probable thal the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured
Tha following specific recagnition criteria are mel befors revenue 1s recognised

Interest: Interest ncome is recognized on a ime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable nterest rale. Interast
incame is included under the head "Revenue from Operations” n the Statement of Profit and Loss. Furiher, in accordance with the guidelines issued by
the Reserve Bank of India tor Non-Banking Finance Companes Income on loan asseis classified as Non-performing Assets is recogrised on receipt
hasis

The Company has entered inte a Co-lending arrangement with other fending nstlubions, The share of mterest income parlaning lo the company as per

the co-lending amangement has been disclosed under Interest Income.

Gain on Direct Assignment of Loan: Dunng 1his reporting period. the Company transfarred a defined segment of its loan by a direct debit assigniment
agraement to an Assignee  Afler the transfer the Assignor holds 10% and the assignee holds ninely percent ownership of each loan respectively The
agreement gives the Company a nghl to receive interest over the 12 25% threshold applicable 1o the Assignee's principal portion

This has led 1o the recognition of a Gain on derecognition of oan as interest income during the year The same 1s recognized as and when it 15 accrued

Processing Fees and Application Fees Income from application and processing fees including recovery of documentation charges insurance
chargesfpremium and other charges are recognised upfront at the meeption of contract

Insurance Premium: insurance charges/ premium are recognised upfrant al the mception of the contract.

Delayed Payment charges, Penal Interest, Others Penal Charges, Foreclosure Charges etc are recognised on receipt basis on account of
unceriainty of the ulimate collection of the same

Support Service Income  Income from Support Sarvices are accounted for as per the terms of the contract az and when the relevant services are
rendared

Dividend: Dividend income 15 recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established on the reparting date.

C. Investments

On initial recognition, all invesliments are measured at cost The cosl comprises purchase price and direclly attnbutable acquisiion charges such as
brokerage, fees and dubes Invesiments. which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not morg than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are ¢ | as ‘Current Ir tments’ All othar investments ara cassified as "Long term Investments

- 'Long term |nvestments’ are caried at acoquisiionfamortised cost Provision 1S recognised only In case of diminution, wihich 1s ather than temporary in
nature

- "Current Investments' are carmed al the lower of cost or fair value on an ndividual basis. Profit or Loss on sale of invastments is recorded on transfer of
title from the Company and 1s determined as the difference betweon the salo price and the carrying value of the investiments

D. Leases
Leases whare the lessor elfeclivaly retans substantially all thy rsks and benefits of ownership of the leased tem are classified as operaling leases
Operating lease rentals are recognised as an expense 0 the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease term

™




E. Earnings per share
The Company reports basie and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - "Earning per sharg”

Basic earnings per share caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the penod altnbutable to equity sharehalders (after deducting atiributable taxes)
by the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding during 1he period

Diluted eamings per share are calculated after adjusting effects of potential equily shares except whare the results are anti-dilutive. Potential equity
shares are thase shares which will converl into equity shares at a later stage Profitloss 1s adjusted by the expenses wicurred on such potential equily
shares. Adjusted profitioss is divided by the weighled average number of ordinary plus potential enquity shares.

F. Segment reporting

The Company identifias primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of nisks and retums and the internal organisation and management
structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information 13 available and for which operating profit/ loss amount are
evaluated regularly by the Managament in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing perlormanca

G. Asset classification, provisions and write-offs of Asscts

The Company assesses all loans and receivables for their recoverability and makes provisian for Mon-performing assets (NPA) as considered necessary
hased on past expenence, emerging trends and estimales, subject to the minimum provision required as per the Master Direchion - MNon-Banking
Financial Company - Mon-Systemically Importart Non-Deposit laking Company (Raserve Bank) Directions, 2016 ("NBFC Master Directions’} as and
when amended.

Contingent provision against standard assels, as required by the NBFC Master Direclions, is also made by the Company on the slandard assels
outstanding as per the rates given in the NBFC Master Direclions

Assat classﬁqa_tlprl . Arrear Period % of 'prn\;l-s'l_a_n-
ta ts ~ |Overdue for less than 151 days  0.as
Sub-standard {Non-performing asset) |Overdue for more than 156da~;s 10
Write-offs Overdue for more than 365days | 100

“Overdue” refers to interest and / or instalment remaining unpaid from the day | became recaivable

H. Loans and Advances
The Company has enterad into a Co-lending arrangement with other lending institutions The share of asset pertaining to the company as per the co-
lending arrangement has baen disclosed as the assel in the boaks of accounts

H. Provisi and Conting

A provision is recogmsed when an enterprise has a present obligalion ds & result of past event and it i1s probable that an outflow of resources will be
required will be required lo selfle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estmate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to thew present values
and are detenmined based on management estimate required to settle the chligaton al the balance sheel data These are reviewed at each balance
sheet daia and adjusied to reflect the current managemenlt estimates

A contingent liability is @ possible obligation that anses from past ovenls whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Compary or a present obligation that 1s not recognised because it 15 not probable that an
outfiow of resources will be required lo setiie the obligation A contingent hability also arises in extremely rale cases where thare is a liability thal cannol
be recognised because it cannat be measured reliably The Company does not recognise a contingent liabllity but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

When there 1s an obligation in respect of which the ikelihood of outflow of resources is ramote, no provision or disclosure is made.
I. Property Plant and Equipment

Tangible Assots

Tangible assets are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. (iIf any). The total cost of assels comprises its
purchase price, freighl. dulies, taxes and any ather incidental expenses directly attnbutable to bringing the assel to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating m the manner intendead by the management

Subsequent expenditure relaled (o an item of tangible assel are added 1o its gross value only if it increases the future henefits of the existing asset,
beyond its previously assessed standards of perfarmance  The carrying amount of an item of tangible assets is derecagnised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal The gainfoss ansing from derecognition of an item of tangible assets is includad in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The gain or loss ansmg form the derecognition of an item of tangible assets would be the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, (f any, and the carrying amount of the item

The residual value. useful life and methods of depreciation are raviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if required.

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated amorlisabion and impaimment losses, 1f any The cost of imangible assets comprses purchass price
and any altnbutable cost of bnnging the asset to its working condition for its intended uss

Intangible Assets under Development
Amount incurred lowards the acquisition o expenditure nourred for in house development of Intangible Assets not ready for intended use at sach

balance sheel date are disclosed under Infangible Assets under Development

J, Depreciation and Am

Tangible Asnsts
Depreciaien on cost of targ/hie assots s provideg on Vet Down Yalue @t st astineted eeful i, which s 0 oo wih de el deeful ife o

aspaciliad v Schadule || of the Companies Act, 2013, Leasehold improvements include all expondilure incuired on the leasehold premises that have




Intangible Assets
Intangible assets compnsing of software are amarlised on a straight line basis over a periad of 5 years

Amorbisaton on assel acquiredisold dunng the year is recognised on a pro-rats basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss fromiup to the date of
acquisitiondsale. The amortisation period and the amaortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful hfe of the
assat is significantly different from previous estimates the amortisation paried 15 changed accordingly

Gains or Iosses from derecognition of ntangible assets as the difference belween Ihe net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of the asset are
recogrised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assel s deracognised

The useful life of Assets is as follows:

Assets Useful Life Depreciation Method
1. Computer and Dala Processing Unit
Firewall (] WD
Others 3 WO
2. Cffice Equipments 5 WO
3. Furnilure & Fitlings 10 WDV
4. Mobile Applications 5 SLM
5 Soltware 5 SLM
6. Laasa Hold Improvemonts ] SLM

K. Impairment of Asseis
Whenever events indicate thal the assels may be impaired. the assets are subject 1o a lest of racoverability based on estimates of future cash flows

ansing from continuing use of such assets and from its ultimate disposal. A provision for impairment 1oss |5 recognised where || is probable thal the
camying vaiue of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset When there is indication that an impairment Ioss
recogrised for an asset in earlier accounting years no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss |s recognised m the

Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assels

L. Employee Benefits

(a) Post t loyee benefits

| ek | M

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity, Employees’ State Insurance and Labour Welfare Fund.

(i) Defined contribution schemes

The employees of the Company who have opted, are entitied to receive benefits under the Provident Fund Scheme definad contribution plans in which
both the employee and the Company contnbute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future banefits other than its annual
contribution and recognises such contributions as an expenses in the period n which employee renders the related services IF the contribution payable
to the scheme for services before the balance sheets date exceeds the contribution aiready paid, the deficil payable lo the scheme is recognised as a

labihty after deducting the contribution already paid

(i} Defined benefit schemes

The Campany provides for the gratuity, a defined benefil retrement plan covenng all employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees
upon death while in employment or on separation from amployment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972' The presen value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuanal valuation, carmed oul by an indepandent
actuary at each balance sheel date, using the Projecled Unit Cradit Method, which recognizes each period of services as giving rise to an additional unit
of employes benefit antilement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated fulure cash llows. The discount rale used for datermining the present value of the
ohligaton under defined henefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Secunlties as al the balance sheet dale

Actuanal gans and losses compiise experience adjustment and the effects of changes in acluarial assumptions are recoqnised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

(b) Short Term Employee Benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term amployee benefits expected ta be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees (s recognised as an

expense during the period

M. Goods and Services Tax input credit

Goods and Services tax input credil is accounted for in the book m the period in which the underlying service received 15 accounted and when thers is no
uncartainly in availingfutilising the credits The Company has opted to claim 50% of eligible input tax eredit on inputs, capital goods and iINput services
and the balance 50% (s charged to the Statemeant of Profit and loss as per applicable provisions.

N. Borrowing Costs & Other Expenses

Borrowing Costs: Borrowing cost includes interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection wilh the arrangement of borrowings  Bormmowing costs 1o the
extent related / attnbutable 1o the acquisitionfconstruction of qualifying assels ara capitalized along with the respective fixed assat up 1o the date such
assetis ready for use Other borrowing costs are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they oceur

Processing Fees and other charges:Loan ongination cost like brokerage. cemmission, precessing charges ete paid at the tima of acquisiion of loans
are divided equally in total agreed instalments of the tenure of Individual term loans and said cost for the penod up to balance sheet date are charged to
revenue and balance shown in the balance sheel as unamorised expenses.

Insurance Expenses’ The Loan protect insurance premium payable to the Insurance Providers i1s accounted aver the tenure of the foan

B Pr T Dealer payouts are e to the G y'a tealers based on schemas given by the Company Tha

Company has imade a pelley fot o asorus the commission |f iNe Claalar does Aol Bubmit an invaics within 3 monthe of its accrdal Howsver the company
himg Kepl at s discretion ihal e commission mignt pe gl iFinveles (s relsed after 3 manihs @ axcsptional casen. The same s clubbed uider the head

Business Promolion sxponaen
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0. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement compnse cash at bank and in hand and short tarmy investrments with an onginat
maturity of tnree months or less, as per Accounting Standard 3 "Cash Flow Statement”

P. Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wherehy profit / (loss) before extracrdinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
non-cash nature and any defarrals or accruals of past or fulure cash receipts or paymants The cash flows from operating, investing and hinancing
activibies of the Company are segreqated based on the available information

Q. Taxation
Income-tax expense comprsas current tax, deferred tax charge or cradil

Current tax
Current Income tax 1s measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authonties in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, enacted in India
The tax rates and tax laws used to computa the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date

Deferred tax

Deferrad tax liability or asset is recognised for iming differences between the profits/losses offered for incame tax and profitfiosses as per the financial
statements. Deferred 1ax assets and habihtes are measured using the tax rates and tax laws thal have been enacted or subslantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Defored tax asset is recognised only to the extent there 8 reasonable certainty that the assels can ba realized in future Howsver, whara thare s
unabsorbed deprediation or carried forward |pss under laxation laws, deferred tax asset is recognised only f there is a virual certainty of realization of
such assel. Defarred tax assel is reviewad as at each halance sheal date and wiitten down or written up to reflect the amount that s reasonably £ virtually
certan to be realized

Deferred lax assets and deferred tax habilites are offset if a legally enforceable nght exists to set-off curren! tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assels and deferred taxes relale to the same taxable entity and the same taxahon authority




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3 Share capital

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number of Number of
shares (Rs. in Lakhs) shares (Rs. in Lakhs)
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of ¥10/- each with voting rights 8.36,19,183 8,361.92 7.86,18 183 7.861,92
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of #10/- each 13.80.817 138.08 13,80,817 138.08
Total 8,50,00,000 8,500.00 8,00,00,000 8,000.00
{b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of ¥10/- each with voting rights 7,61,85.404 7,618 54 7.,09,10.833 7.081.08
Compulsarily convertible preference shares of ¥10/- each
Total 7,61,95,404 7,619.54 7,09,10,833 7,091.08

Refer Notes {i) to (i) below

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number of i Number of .
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
shares shares

|Equity shares of ¥10/- each with voting rights
Opening Balance 7,09.10,833 7.091.08 7,08 52,097 7.085.30
Fresh issue 52 84 571 628.46 57,836 578
Closing Balance 7,61,95 404 7.619.54 7,08,10,833 7,091.08
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of #10/- each
Opening Balance =
Fresh issue -
Conversion - -
Closing Balance - -
Total 7,61,95,404 7,619.54 7,09,10,833 7,091.08
Notes:
Equity Shares

The Company has issued equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitlied 1o one vole per

shares

(i) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Mame of shareholder As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number of % holding in that Number of % holding in that
shares held class of shares shares held class of shares
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each with voting rights
Gaurav Gandhi 86,52 550 11.36% 86,52, 550 12.20%
Prasham Mayank Shah 73,57, 584 9.66% 70,85,000 9.99%
Hirmani Jain 1,01,70,976 13.35% 1,01,70,976 14.34%
Anup Agarwal B8 50,000 8.99% 68,50 000 9.66%
Chanvim Plastics Pyt Lid 41,27 675 542% 40,92 464 5.77%
Nathmal Jain 44 69 050 5.87% 44 69,050 6.30%
| Aalesh Avlam 43,444,728 5.70% 43,44.728 6.13%
Total 4,59,72,563 60.34% 4,56,64,768 64.40%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownerships of

shares

(iii) Shareholding of Promoters

Year ended Shares held by Promoter % change during
the year
Promoter Name [Number of Shares |% of Total Shares

As at 31st March 2024 Gaurav Gandhi 86,52,550 11.36% -0.85%
Soumya Jain 32,51,320 4.27% -0.32%

__|Aalesh Avlani 4344728 5.70% -0.42%

As at 318t March 2023 Gaurav Gandh| 88,52 550 12.20% -1.96%
Soumya Jain 32,561,320 4.50% 0.00%

Aalesh Aviani 43,444,728 6.13% -0.01%

W
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note 4 Reserves and surplus

As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023

FParticulars
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs._ in Lakhs)
(a) Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-1C(1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Opemng balance 54.05 2324
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profil and Loss 40.28 30 81
Closing balance 94.43 54.05
|ib) Reserve & Surplus
Share Premmum 282610 1044 87
Employee Stock Options Qulstanding Reserve 29.08 2070
(c) Surplus | (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance 26 55 97 7o
Add; Profit/ {Lose) for the yoar 201, 154 0/
Less: Appropriations for the current year
Transfer lo statulory reserve as por Section 45-1C(1) of The RBI Act, 1934 -40.38 -30.81
Ciosing balance 187.08 25.55
Total 3,236.68 1,14512

Note 5 Long-term borrowings

As at 315t March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023

Particulars
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs]

{a) Term loans {Secured)

From banks 2,151.06 4.900.91

From Financial institulions 379749 6,228 30
ﬁ{h] Nan-Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) 1.600.00 35000
{c) Inter Corporate Deposits G50.00

Total B,198.55 11,479.21

a} Details of Security provided:
Secured Loans from Banks
The Loans are secured by way of hypott lon of Loan Receivables of the Company equivalent to security cover provided to respective banhks -

AU Small Finance Bank - The loans aggregating to * 920.83 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhi, Soumya Jain, Himani Jain, Mathmal Jain and
Aalesh Avlan)

State Bank of India, Suryodaya Small Finance Bank & Utkarsh Small Finance Bank - The loans aggregating to T 3945.77 lakhs are auarantead by
Gauray Gandhi. Soumya Jain, Nathmal Jain and Aalesh Aviani,

ESAF Small Finance Bank, Capital Small Finance Bank & Yes Bank - The Inans aggregating lo # 1240.27 lakhs are guaranteed by Aalesh Avlari,
Soumya Jain, Mathmal Jam, Himam Jain and Gauray Gandiy

Fincare Small Finance Bank - The lvans aggregating lo 7 919.82 lakhs are guaranteed by Aalesh Aviani, Soumya Jain, Mathmal Jan and Gaurav
Gandhi

The Loans are secured by way of hypot| inn of Loan Receivables of the Company equivalent to security cover provided to respective
Financial Institutions -

Ambit Finvest - The loans aggregating 1o 7 464.46 lakhs are guaranteed by Gaurav Gandhi, Soumya Jain and Aalesh Avlam & Nathmal Jain
Electronica Finance - The loans aggregating to # 134,18 lakhs are guaranteed by Gaurav Gandhi, Soumya Jam, Aalesh Aviani and Nathmal Jain
Hinduja Leyland Finance - The loans aggregating to ¥ 1,139.75 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhi, Soumya Jain, Mathmal Jain and Aatesh
Avlan,

IKF, Northern Arc - The loans aggregating lo ¥ 2854.61 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhi, Seumya Jain, Nathmal dain, Aalesh sviar and Himam
Jain

MAS Finangcial - The loans aggregating to  43.79 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhi, Jain, Nathmal Jain and Aalesh Aviam.

Maneywise Financial - The loans aggregating to ¥ 334.08 lakhs are guaranteed by Gaurav Gandhi, Soumya Jan, Mathmal Jain, Himan Jain and Aalesh
Aylan

Vivriti Capital - The loans aggregating to # 291.66 lakhs are guaranteed by Gaurav Gandhi, Soumya Jain, Nathmal Jain and Aalesh Avlan
Manappuram Finance Limited Term Loan-1- The aggregating to 7 603,47 lakhs are guaranteed by Gaurav Gandhl, Soumya Jain and Aalesh Avlani
Incred Financial Services Limited- The loans agqgreqating to # 773.55 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhi, Himani Jain, Mathmal Jain and Aalesh
Avlan.

Muthoot Capital Services Ltd. - The loans aggregating to ? 600 lakhs are guarantesd by Gauray Gandin, Himani Jain, Nathmal Jain and Aalesh Aviam
and * 270.83 lakhs are guaranteed by Gaurav Gandhi Mathmal Jain and Aalesh Aviani

TATA Capital- The loans aggregating to ¥ 75 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauwray Gandhi, Soumya Jain, Nathmal Jain, Himani Jain and Aalesh Avlan and
7 200 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhl, Soumya Jain, Nathmal Jain, and Aalesh Avlani

Mabsamruddhi Finance - The loans aggregatng 1o ¥ 319,19 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauwray Gandhy, Soumya lain, Nathmal Jain, Himan Jam and
Aalesh Avlani

NAFA Put Ltd - The loans agaregating to ® 164.38 lakhs are guaranteed by Gauray Gandhi, Soumya Jain, Mathmal Jain and Aalesh Aulan

Sundaram Finance - The lpans aggregating to ¥ 93.31 lakhs are guaranteed by Sauray Gandhi, Soumya Jain, Mathmal Jain and Aalash Avlan




b) Terms of repayment of Term Laans

Naiie:nt Landas Terms of R As at 31st March 2024 | As atSis! March 2023
s (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Al Small Finance Bank Repayable in 24 equal menthly instalments 2083 27083
commencing fram following month fram date of
full disbursement.
Rate of Interest 11.50 %
AL Small Finance Bank Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments 187 .60
commencing from following menth fram date of
full dhsbursemant
Rate of Inlerest 11 95%
AL Small Finance Bank Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments - 21875
commencing from following month from date of
tull disbursement
Rata of Interest 11 95%,
AL Small Finance Bank Repayable in 24 egual monthly instalments 3333
commencing from following month from date of
full dhsbursement
Rane of Interast 12 104,
ALl Small Finance Bank, Repayable in 24 caual monthly instalments 250,00 a0 o0
cammancing from following month from date of
full disbursement
Rate ul Interest 12 75%
AU Small Finance Bank Repayable in 24 equal manthly instalmenis 483 33
commencing from followang month from dale ol »
20333
full thsburzement
Rate of Interest 12 65%
Electrorica Finance Ltd Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments
commencing from following manth from data of
full disbursemanit &
Rate of interest 13.50%
Electranica Finance Ltd Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalmants 200.00
commencing from following menth from date of a4 19
full disbursement
Rate of Interest 12 50%
Hinduja Leytand Finance Limied Repayable in 24 equal monthly nstalments 2019
commencing from 1 month after date of
disbursement N
Rate of IMarest 12 26%
Hinduga Leyland Finance Limited Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments 694,95
commencing from 1 month after date of
disbursement 185:20
Rate of Interast 12%
Hindwa Leyiand Finance Limited Repayabia in 24 equal monthly instalments 1.500.00
commeneing from 1 month after date of =
disbursement S
Rate of Interest 12 25%
Western Camital Advisars Private Limited Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments -
commancing from 151 of month after 30 days of
date of disbursement
Hate of Interest 13.9%
Vivriti Capital Private Limited Repayahle in 24 equal monthly instalments 25000
commencing fram 1 manth after date of
145,83
disbursement.
Rate of Interest 13.25%
Vivrit Capital Private Limied Repayable in 24 equal monthly nstaiments FLa R
commencing from 1 menth after date of 145 85
disbursement
Rate of Interest 13%
[Ambit Finest Prvate Limited Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments 5992
lcommencng from 1 month after date of
disbursement F
Rate of Interest 13 25%
Amibit Finvest Private Limited Repayabla in 24 equal monthly instaliments 12280
commencing from 1 month after date of
disbursement =
Rate of Interast 13 25%,
Ambil Finvest Private Limited Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments 23178
commencing from 1 month after date of
B2 64
cisbursement
Rate of Interest 12 25%
IKF Finance Limited Repayahle in 36 equal manthly instalments 34722
commencing from 1 month after date of 180,56
disbursement
Rate of Interest 13 50%
IKF Finance Limited Repayable in 36 equal monthly mstalments 645 83
commencing from 1 month alter date of ags g3
dishursement
i Rate of interest 13.00%
Incred Financial Servicos Limited Repayable in 18 squal monthly instalmants
comimanaing from 1 menth aftar date of
disburaament
Raie of interest 13.85% TaETE]

Inerad Finanas! Sarviosn Limbted

Rapayable in 24 agusl montbly inatalmnents
cammencing from 1 month after date of
disbursemeant

Rate of Interest 13 7T5%




Mame of |_ender Terms of Repayment As at 31 %l March 2024 M&%I
. {Rs. in Lakhs} (Rs. in Lakhs)
MAS Financial Services Limited Repayable in 24 equal menthly instalments 7500
commencing fram 1 month afler date of
disbursemant
Rate of Interest 13.00%
MAS Financial Services Limited Repayabile in 24 equal monthly mstaliments 25.00
commencing from 1 menth after date of
disbursement
Rale of Inlerest 13 00%
MAS Financial Services Limited Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments 7500
cammencing fram 1 month after date of
disbursemant
MAS Financial Services 1imited a Repayahle i 24 equal monthly mstaliments 10004
commaneing from 1 manth aftar date f 0.04
disbursement -
Rate of Interast 12 8%
MAS Financlal Servicas Linited Ruapayabla n 24 pgual monthly instalmeants 218./5
commencing from 1 month after date of 4375
disburzement
Rate of Interest 13 307
Maoneywise Financial Services Private Limied Repayable in 15 equal monthly mstalments - 71,65
cammensing from 1 month aiter date of
dishursameant
Rata of Interest 13-60%
Moneywise Financial Services Private Limited Repayable in 15 equal menihly instalments 334 09 S00.00
commencing fram 1 month alter date of
dishursemeant
Rata of Interest 12.25%
Marther Arc Capital Limited Repayable in 24 egual monihly nstalments - 2452
commencing from 1 month after date of
disbursement
Rate of Interast 13 50%
Northerm Arc Capial Limited Repayable in 24 aqual monthly nstaiments - 71.64
commencing from 1 month alter date of
dishursement
Rate of Intarast 13 504,
NMorthem Arc Capital Limited Repayable in 18 equal monthly instalments - -
commancng lriom 1 month afler date of
disbursement
Rate of Interest 13 50%
Northern Arc Capital Limited Repayable in 18 equal monthly instalments 184 52
commencing from 1 month after date of
dishursemeant.
Rate of Interest 13.50%
Northern Arc Capital Limited Repayatle in 18 equal monthly instalments 91.03
commencing fram 1 manth after date of
disbursamant ~
Rate of Interest 13.50%
Nerthern Arc Capital Limited Repayabie in 18 equal monhly instalments 217.23
1y froni 1 menth after date of 547 08
disbursement.
Rate of Intaresl 13.65%
|Mortharn Arc Capital Limited Repayable i 18 equal monthly instalments 47401
commencing from 1 monmh after date of
disbursement. L
ate of Interest 13 G5%
NMortherm Arc Capilal Limited Repayable in 18 aqual monthly instalments 946,90
commeancing from 1 month after date of 884 13
disbursament
Rate of limerest 13 50%
Nartherm Are Capital Limited Repayable n 18 egqual manthly instalments. 1,500.00
commencing trom 1 month afier date of
dishursement Sl
Rate of Interest 13.00%
|Profectus Capial Private Limited Repayable in 24 egual monthly instalments 5831
commencing from 1 maonth afler date of
disbursement
Rate of Interest 14 00%
State Bank of India Repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments 1880942
commencing from 1 manth afler date of 645 89
disbursemant
Rate of Interest B.00% H|
Suryoday Small Finance Bank Repayable in 18 equal monthly instalments 37.03
commeqcng fram 1 month alter date of
dhsbursement
Rate of Interest 13.50%
Suryaday Small Finance Bank Rapayable in 18 equal monthly mslaiments 60000
commencing fram 1 month after date of 21850
dishursemeant
Rate of Inlerast 12 25%
FSJ\I—' Small Finance Bark T1-1 Repayable in 16 equal monthly instalments 40199
commeneing from 1 month after date of 252 03
disbursement
2 — |Rale of intgrest 13.50% e -
[Fabaamruddm Finanee T imied - TW F:%napnylnbls in 18 naual Monthly nstaiie nis A06 42
cammaeneaing tram 1 month after date af 15080
disbursamant
— ___|Rate of Intarest 13 60% o




As at 31sl March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
Name of Lender Terms of Repayment [r———————— -
e (Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Nabsammddhi Finance Limited - TW Repayable in 18 equal monthly instalments A06.04
rommencing from 1 month after date of .
disbursement 15934
Rate of Interest 13 00%
MNAFS Pyt Lid Repayabla in 18 eqgual monthly mstahnents 818 57
commencing from 1 month after date of
dishursement s
Rate of Interest 13 50%
Sundaram Finance Repayable n 18 agual monthly instalments 347 50
commencing from 1 month after date of 95 a1
dishursement o
Rale of Intarest 13 25%
TATA Capital Repayable in 18 snual monthly instalments 225 00
commencing from | month after date of
cishiirsament 7604
Rate of Interest 13 25%
Litkarsh Srnall Fisance Faok Limited Repayabla in 18 equal monthly instaliments 750 00
commencing from 1 month aiter date of =
disbursameant 250.00
Rate of Interest 12 35%
Capital Small Finance Bank Repayablo in 18 egual monlhiy instalmants 386 24
commencing from 1 month alter date ol
s 135 71
disbursement
Rate of Interas! 12 35%
Manappuram Finance Limited Term Loan-1 Repayable in 18 equal monihly instaiments 907 02
commencing fram 1 manth after date of
disbursameant 0345
Rate of Interest 13 16%
State Bank of India TL 2 Repayable in 18 equal monihly instalmants 383922
commencing from 1 month aller date of
disbursement 260158
Rate of Interest 09 10%
Anand Rathi Principal Bullel repayment and interest payabl F. 500 00
on guarterly basis
Ambit Finvest Pyt |Ltd - dth Repayable in 30 equal monthly instaiments T
commencing fram 1 month after date of
disbursemant 45102
Rate of Interest 12 56%
AL Small Finance Bank-9th Repayable in 30 equal monthly mstalments
cammencing from 1 manth after date of .
distursement D66 67
Rate of Interest 12 65%
ESAF Small Finance Bank TL-2 Repayable in 36 equal monthly instaliments =
cammencing from 1 month after date of 43504
disbursemenl
ftate of Interest 14%
Fincare Small finance Bnak Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments -
commeneing from 1 month after date of
19.8
disbursement 7 4
Rate of Interest 12.75%
Incred Financial Services Limited TL-3 Repayable in 24 equal manthly nstalments -
commeaneing from 1 month after date of 774 55
disbursement
Rale of Interast 13%
Muthoot Capital Services Lid. - 182 Repayablz in 24 egual monthly instalments =
commencing from 1 month alter date of s
disbursament 27083
Rate of Interest 13%
Mutheot Capital Services Lid - 3 Repayable in 10 egual monthly instalmenis
{eommencing from 1 month after date of
dishursemeant B
Rate of Interest 11%
Poonawala Fincorp Repayable in 36 equal monthly nstalments
commencing fram 1 month after date of -
disbursement etz
Rate of Interest 10.50%
[TATA Capilal TL- 2nd Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments -
commencing from 1 month after date of 200.00
disbursemant.
Rate of Interest 124%
Yes Bank Repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments -
commencing from 1 month after date of 427 50
disbursement.
Rate of Interest 10 30%
Sub Total 17,869.74 23,704.10
Note & Long-term provisions
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs) [Rs. in Lakhs)
(a] Provision for employee benefits:
(i} Provision tor gratuity (net) 3682 25556
36.82 25,55
q{br Pravision - Others:
1 For non-performing assets 65975 BG 05
iy Provisions far eentingency @gminat Standard Assets (Refer Nate | beiow) A8 56 48,76 |
11830 135.82
Total 166.12 161.37

Mote.

1) Buning the year, a contingan! provision agamst standard assets has hapn created by Company at 0 25% of aulstanding standard assats in terms of RBI
Circular No DNBS PDCC. NO 207/03 02 D02f'2010-‘|l dated January 17,2011




Note 7 Short Termm Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

Ag at 31t March 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)

{5, in Lakhs)

Current maturities of long-term debt 11.921.19 12,674 B9
Bank Overdraft* 746 59 1,369 32
Other borrowings 253 3.59
Non-Converdible Debentures (Lnsacired) 1,250 00
Unsecured
(it Inter Corporate Deposits

(@) From related partias

{b) Frem other parties -

Total 13,9200 13,947.79

* Bank overdraft is secured against Fied Daposit

Note 8 Trade payables

Parliculars

Trade payables:
- Total cutstanding dues of micro medium and small entarpnses
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditars other than micro medium and small enterprisas

Total

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
6.67 518
72.16 131 94
7883 137.12

Refer Mote No 41 for ageng analysis of Trade payables

Note 9 Other current liabilities

As at 315t March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Aol (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs._in Lakhs)
{a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 11613 103 45
(b} Statutory Dues Pavable 6809 G587
(¢} Employee henehit expenses payable 57 53 3064
(d) Payable to dealers 36 58 97 54
() Other fiabilities 240 51 116 67
1) Ur d gain on d of loan 20 60 33.08
Total 568.45 456.26
Note 10 Short-term provisions
Particulars As at 31§t March 2024 | As at 315_( March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs|
{a) Provision for employea benefits:
{1y Provision for gratuity (net) 112 039
112 .39
(b) Provision - Others:
it Provisions for contingency agains! Standard Assets (Refer Note i) 71,10 38 dq
i) Provision for expenses 22077 141 30
i} Income Tax B7 75 13 12
359.62 192.86
Total 360.74 193.25

Mote:

1) Dunng the year, a contingent provision against standard assets has been created by Company at 0.25% of outstanding standard assets in terms of REE

Circular Mo DNBS PO CC.NO. 207/03,02 D02/2010-11 dated January 17,2011
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 11(c) Property, Plant and Equipment

Iniangible Assets under Development

As at March 31, 2024

Original Cost

Gross Block as

Particulars Gross Block as Addiions Capitalisation =RigHaHng Written off at March 31,
at April 1, 2023 | during the year year 2024
(Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs)
Intangible Assets under
development 969.20 11017 - 150.37 978.99
Refer Note 43 for ageing of Intangible Asset under development.
As at March 31, 2023
Original Cost
Gross Block as Addition: Sale during the fGrons Biock as
Particulars e < i Capitalisation 9 Written off at March 31,
at April 1, 2022 | during the year year 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs.In Lakhs)
Intangible Assets under
development 559.84 79572 379.36 F 7.00 969.20

Refer Note 43 for ageing of Intangible Asset under development.




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 12 Non Current Investment

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Unquoted:
Investment in Subsidiaries:
(1) Equity Instruments:
8,000 equity shares of Analytics Fox Private Limited Rs. 4,375 each 350 00
(1) Equity Instruments:
7,200 equity shares of 9Syndicate Advisors Private Limited Rs. 10 072
each
Total 350.72 -
Note 13 Long-term loans and advances
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
a (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
(a) Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Security Deposits 43.89 43.89
(b) Secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated*
Lending Assets
Standard Assets 10.666.47 15,669.20
Sub-standard assets 713.39 344,21
(c) Advances to others 11.31
Total 11,423.76 16,068.61
Note 14 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Fixed Deposit { with ariginal matunty more than 12 months) 1.170.17 1.492.00
Total 1,170.17 1,492.00

Note

(1) Deposits of Rs. 1170.17 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1492.00 lakhs) pledged as lien

Note 15 Current investments

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Non Trade Investments (Valued at cost, unless stated otherwise)
Quoted Investments in Mutual Funds

Aggregate amount of Quated Investments- Cost
Aggregate amount of Quated Investments- Market Value

022

0.22

D.22
D.23




MNote 16 Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

{Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents

(a) Cash on hand

(b} Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts
(i) Term deposits with original maturity of less than three months

(Refer Note (i} below)
(b) Other Bank Balance (Refer Note {ii) below)
Investment in term deposits (With original maturiy of more than three
months but less than twelve months)

Total

111.98 28.23
41410 798 .66
250.00 302 .66
1,045 78 702.69
1,821.82 1,832.24

Note

(i) Deposits of Rs. 250 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 302 65 lakhs) pledged as lien
(i) Deposits amounting to Rs. 1045 76 lakhs (March 31,2023 Rs 702 69 lakhs) are pledged as lien

Note 17 Short-term loans and advances

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)

{Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated”
Standard Assets

{b) Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Security deposils
Trade Advances lo dealers
Advances {o Creditors
Advances to Dealers
Inter Corporate Deposits

(c) Prepaid expenses
{d) Advance Income Tax

(e) Balances with government authorities
{i}y GST credit receivable

Total

15,304.78 12,028.36

0.40 -
925861 626.22
4.04 8.06

0.42 -

22005 -
352.08 32260
107 .82 74.72
7.01 1.35
16,922.20 13,061.30

Mote 18 Other current assets

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Considered good, unless otherwise stated
(a) Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on loans & advances
(i} Interest acerued on bank deposits

(b) Others
(i) Other receivables
(i) Employee Loan

Total

859,43 628.08
89.73 51.19
165.77 4561
13.34 3.27
1,128.27 728.15

,r. A a3k




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 19 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
(a) |Interest Income (Refer Note (i) below) 6,752.80 4,726 74
(b)  |Other Financial Services (Refer Note (i) below) 2,488.06 1,596.56
(c) Interesl income on derecognition of loan 86.79 593
Total 9,327.65 6,329.24
For the year ended For the year ended
Note Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
(i) Interest Income comprises:
Interest on loan portfolio 6,723.19 4,691.03
Interest on ICD's 13.84 6.54
Interest on trade advances 15.77 2917
Total 6.752.80 4,726.74
(iiy  |Other Financial Services comprises:
Processing fee and other charges 2,488.06 1,596.56
Total 2,488.06 1,696.56

Note 20 Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
J1st March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Net gain on sale of:
Current investments

Other non-operating income
Interest on Bank deposits
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Interest on Employee Loan
Recavery against loan written off
Gain on sale of intangible asset under development

Sundry Creditors Written back

Total

15.31 13.76
342.75 132.87
201.53 81.14

0.21 0.24
0.57 0.30
125.40 51.19

15.04 :

358.06 146.63




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 21 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2024 J1st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
|Salaries and wages 213896 1416 71
Resource Suppon charges 230.94 107.24
Gratuily expenses [Refer note 35] 12.00 10.96
Contributions to provident and other funds 8425 96.52
Insurance Expenses 16.57 9.70
Staff welfare expenses 36.53 37.22
Total 2,519.25 1,678.35
Note 22 Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
(a) Interest expense on:
{1) Borrowings 3.077.52 2.064.04
{b) Other borrowing costs
Processing charges on borrowings 114.30 54 13
Total 3,191.82 2,118.17
MNote 23 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Depreciation of tangible assets 2048 29.66
Amartisation of intangible assets 83.24 9.20
Total 103.82 38,86
Note 24 Provisions and write offs
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Contingent provision against standard assets [Refer note 6 and 10] 3086 51.24
Provisian for non-performing assets [Refer note 8] -14.71 26.07
Bad debts written off 1.060.85 566.15
Total 1,076.99 643.47
Note 25 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Paymenlt to Auditor:
To statutory auditors
- Audit fee 9.02 450
Bank charges 292 7.42
Payment Gateway Charges 821 7.03
MNACH Registration & Verification Charges B1.60 2339
Business Promotion expenses 647.13 623.40
Commission & Brokerage 762 .54 271.565
Communication and internet charges 14.65 30.81
Credit investigation expenses 107 61 137.93
Electricity expenses 15.25 11.45
Fee & Stamp Charges 6.18 511
Insurance Charges BB.F7 49.07
IT Services Expenses 167.56 76.01
Legal expenses 17.02 7.60
[Misceliansous expenses 14.26 19.16
Daonation Expensa a.00 -
Posiage, printing and staticnery 3572 44 51
Frofessional feas 188 B 122 82
Hent %8 67 76 14
Office and Maintenance Expanass 4.4 12.48
Reversal of GST credit 196,66 160 65
Travelling & conveyance expenses 144 .26 146.83
Total 2,565.60 1,833.66




Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 26 Deferred Tax

Note Particulie As at 31st March  As at 31st March
No. 2024 2023
(Hs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs])
26 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
On difference between written down value of Property, plant and .44 213
equipment as per Income Tax and books of account ' '
On provisions on loans and advances 47 .92 43.86
On carried forward losses” - -
On provision for Gratuity 9.55 6.53
Others i =
Disallowance as per MSME 1.22 -
Amortisation- allowed as expenses in Income Tax -38.26 -45.26
Provison for expenses and interest @30% 23.35 10.67
Total Deferred Tax Assets 42.34 13.66

“The Company has created deferred tax on unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward business losses, as the
management estimates that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income

will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised

/_-"T:"‘"
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS)18, "Related Party Disclosures”.

Promoter and promoter group Soumya Jain
Aalesh Avlani
Gaurav Gandhi
Individuals & Entities having, directly or indirectly, control or |Nil

significant influence over the reporting enterprise

Subsidiaries of the reporting Enterprise

9Syndicate Advisors Private Limited (w.e.f. 28th February 2024)

Analyticsfox Softwares Private Limited (w.e.f. 18th October 2023)

Key management personnel

Aalesh Avlani (Director and KMP)

Gurpreet Singh Sodhi (Director and CEQ)

Companies ! Firms over which the Key Managerial
Persons/Director/Relatives have significant influence or
control

(with whom transactions have taken place)

Greshma Finvest Private Limited

Director

Soumya Jain (Director)

MNathmal Jain (Director)

Aalesh Avlani (Director)

Gurpreet Singh Sodhi (Director)

Relatives of key management personnel

i)
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

28 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Profit after tax ag per Staterment of Mrofil and Logs (A) (Rs.) 201 .81 154 07
Weighted average number of Equily Shares for calculating Basic Earming per Share
()" 727,183,134 7.08,96,880
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for calculating Diluted Earning per 7,29,30,808 7.11,32.510
Basic Earnings per Share of face value of Rs. 10/- each (in Rs.) (A} / (B) 0.28 0.22
Diluted Earnings per Share of face value of Rs. 10/- each (in Rs ) (A) [ (C) 0.28 022

2

@w

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

The Company has no contingenl liabilities and comimilments as on Maich 31, 2024 ( Maich 31, 2023 Nl

30 Based on the intimation received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under "The Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED') Act, 2008" Accordingly, the disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as

at the year ended together with interest paid /payable are furnished below:

As at March 31,

Particulars As at March 31,
2024 2023
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year B.67 518
The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as al the end of the year

The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with the amount of
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

0.01

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
vears, until such date when the interesl dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

31 A, Expenditure in foreign currency:
For the year For the year
ended 31st March|ended 31st March
2024 2023

Particulars (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Software & Technology Expenses 2.42 -

B. Earnings in foreign currency for the year ended March 31, 2024 : Nil (March 31, 2023 . Nil)
32 DERIVATIVES

The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year. The Campany has no unhedged

foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 - Nil)
33 LEASE

34

Disclosures for operating leases under Accounting Standard 19 - “Accounting for Leases”
The Company has taken office premises under operating lease. The lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss are Rs. 99 56 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, 76.44 lakhs).

The future minimum lease payments in respect of non-canceilable porfion in the operating lease as at the Balance Sheet dale

are summarnzed below:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31, 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs)

[Minimum lease payments:

MNot later than one year

76,49

73.00

Later than one year but not later than five years

12 85

80 33

Later than five years

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is engaged in business of Non Banking Finance Company and there are no separate reportable segments as per

Accounting Standard- 17 on "Segment Reporting”

e /
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35 Employee Benefits
Disclosures as required as per Accounting Standard -15 — "Employee Benefits” are as under:

1) Defined Benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
graluity on departure at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service The plan is wholly
unfunded. The present value of the obligation s determined based on an actuary valuation, using the Hrojected Unit Credit
Method, Actuarial gain and losses arising on such valuation are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
_ (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
A, Net liability /{assets) recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 37.95 2594
Faur value of plan assets i &
Net liability/(assets) 37.95 25.94
|B. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:
Current service cost 17.75 17.28
Interest an abligation 3N 220
Expected return on plan assets = :
Net actuarial losses /(gains) -5.42 -8.54
Recognised Past Service Cost-Vested - -
Total expense included in employee benefit expense (Refer Note No 21) 15.54 1096
Actual return on Plan assets - -
C. Changes in the present value of defined henefit obligation representing
reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof:
Opening defined benefit abligation 2584 14.99
Current Service Cost 17.75 17 28
Interest Cost 321 220
Actuarial losses /(gains) 542 -8 54
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid -3.54 -
Closing defined benefit obligation 37.95 2594
D.  Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets:
Qualifying insurance policy with LIC NA NA
|E.  Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as
weighted averages):
Discount rate ¥& 7.20% 7.40%
Expected return on plan assets NA NA
Annual increase in salary costs * 5.00% 5.00%
i Samaed Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Rate During Employment Lives Moriality Mortali E
riality (2012-14)
(2012-14)
Mortality Rate After Employment NA NA

B The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for
the estimated term of the obligations

™ The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuanal valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employment market

F.  Disclosure as required under Para 120(n) (Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Present Value of the Defined Banefit Obligation 37.95 25.94
Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the end of the period . -
Surplus/ (Deficit) in the Plan -37.95 -25.94
Experience adjustments on Plan Liabilitiss (Gain) / Loas -6.08 -7.18

Exparience adjustriients on Plan Assets (Gain) / Loss

Note:

I} Defined Contribution Plans :
The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss which are included under contribution

to Provident and other funds
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)

Amount recognised as an expense and included in Note No. 21 of Statement
of Profit and Loss

Contribution to Provident Fund 60.01 69.66
Contribution to Employee State Insurance 19.22 2414
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund . D.25 0.39

T 79.48 94.19

| "I’
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36.3

i6.4

Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-b q pany (as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-
Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015) as at March 31,

2024.

March 31, 2074 March 31, 2023
At e X & P o . o o
Liabllities Side Amount Overdue Amount Overdue
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Loans and advances availed by the non
banking financial pany inclusive of interest
acorued thereon but not paid:
a) Debentures. Secured
Unsecured
{other than falling within the meaning of public
deposils®)
) Deferrad Credits
c) Term Loans
d} Inter-corporate loans and borrowings
a) Commercial Paper
fy Public Deposits - -
Q) Other Loans = =
- From Shareholders

2860 47

17.862 69
662 71

Total 21,485.87 -

350000

23,807 56

24,157.56

* Please sae nole 1 below

Break-up of (1){f} above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid):

{a) In the form of Unsecured debentures
{b) In the form of parlly secured debentures e debentures where there s a shorifall in the
value of secunty

{£) Other public deposits

NMarch 31, 2024
Outstanding

March 31, 2023
Dutstanding

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Mareh 31, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2023

0 ing Outstanding
Assets Side Amount A
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Breakup of Loans and Ad si ling bills receivat o
{other than those included In (4) below) :
a} Secured 26 G4 fd 2804177
b} Unsecured 025 61 637 52
Total 27,610.25 28,679.29
*Gross amount (before deducting provision)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0 jing Outstanding
Amount Amount
[Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Breakup of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC
activities

i) Lease assets ncluding lease rentals under sundry debtors
a) Financial Lease

b Operating Lease

il} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debiors:
a) Assels on hire

b) Repossessed Assels

i) Other loans counting lowards AFC activities®

a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

b) Loans other than (a) above -

“The detalls required to be disclosed for Asset Financing Company (AFC) has not been disclosed in the aboue note as tha Reserve
Bank of India[RBI) has merged Assel Financing Companies. Loan Campanies and Investmant Companies inte a naw calegory
‘NBFC - Investiment and Cradil Company' vide its clioular no ONBR (PD) CC Mo 097/03.10.001/2018-1% dated February 22,

2018




36.5

36.7

36.8

Breakup of Investments: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
o] ding Out ing

Amount Amount
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current Investments:

1. Quoted:
i) Shares (a) Equity
{b) Preferance
il Debentures and Bonds -
il Units of mutual funds - 22
) Government Securilies
v} Qthers

2. Unquoted:
1) Sharas' (a) Equity i
{b) Preference A
i) Debentures and Bonds - -
i) Units of mutual funds - -
) Government Secunties
v) Others
Tatal - 022

Long Term investments:

1. Quoted:
11 Shares ({a} Equity
(b} Preterence - -
iil Dehentures and Bonds - =
i) Linits of mutual funds = =
v Government Securities - -
vj Others - -

2. Ungquoted:
it Shares: {a) Equity 35072 -
(b} Freference =
it Debentures and Bonds - -
ity Units of mutaal funds
w) Government Securnties
v Others -
Total 350.72 -

Borrower GroupWise classification of assets financed as in {3} and {4) above:

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Secured Unsecured Taotal Secured Unsecured Tatal

Related Panies*’

a) Subsidiaries. - = 5 . 3 =
by Comparies n the same group - 3 - - 2 *
<) Other related parties = - . - .
Other than related partias 265,684 64 - - 2804177 * 2800177

2.
Total 26,6684.64 - - 28,041.77 - 28,041.77
Investor GroupWise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both guoted and
unguoted):
As at March 31, 2024 (Rs. In Lakhs) As at March 31, 2023 {Rs. In Lakhs)
TMarket Value / Book Value Market Value / Book Value
Category Break up or fair (Met of Break up or fair (Net of
value or NAV Provisions) value or NAV FProvisions)
1. Relaled Parties **
a) Subsidiaries /0 T2 365072
b} Companias in the same aroup - =
©) Other related partias
2 Other than related parties
Units of mutual fund
5Bl Floating Rate Debt Fund Req Gr - 023 az22

Total 35072 35072 023 022
** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI [Please sea note 3 balow)

Other information Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

i) Gross Nan Parforming Assats

a) Related Parties = .

b Other than related parfies 71339 344 1

i) Net Non Performing Assets

a) Related Parties - -

by Other than related parlies B43 65 25816

i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of dalt - -

Notes:

1. As defined in paragraph 2{1){xn) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceplance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Direchons, 1998,

2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Non-Systermically Impertant Mon-Banking Financial (MNon-Deposit Accepting or Holding} Companies
Prudential Narms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015

3 Al Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets and also assets acquired in
satisfaction of dabt. Howeyer, market value in respact of quatad (nvestmeants and break upfair value/NAY in respect of unquated investments should be diselnsed
irrespective of whether they are classified as long lerm or current in {4) above

4 Breakup of Loans and Advances does not include Intg[e&ﬁnnmed on such loans
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

38 Employee Stock Option Scheme

In the extraordinary general meeting held on 24th March 2021, the shareholders approved the issue of 955 102 oplions under the Scheme litled "Employes
Stock Option Plan 2021° (ESOP A). In the extraordinary general meeting held on 15th May 2022, the shareholders approved the issue of 29,34 898 oplions
under the Scheme titled "Employee Stock Option Plan 20227 (ESOP B)
The ESOP A allows the issue of options to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (whethur in India or abroad). Each option comprises one

underlying equity share.

As per tha Scheme, the Board of Directors grants the options to the employees deemed eligible. The options granted vest over a period of 3-4 years from the

date of the grant in proportions specified in the Scheme. Oplions may be exercised within 5 years from date of vesting

The Board of Directors of the Campany, had granted 8,07,500 options under this Scheme 1o the employees of the Company. The shares eovered by sueh

oplions were 8,07, 500 equity shares,

The difference between the fair price of the share underlying the options granted on the date of grant of option and the exercise price of the option (being the

ntrinsic value of the oplion) representing Stock compensation expense shall be expensed aver the vesting periad.

Employees entilled

As selected by the Board of Direclors

Vesting conditions

Continued employment with the Company

Veslting Plan Graded vesting over a penod of 3 years commencing after the date of grant
Method of Setflement Equity sellled share based options
Method of Valuation Riack Scholes Model

|E xercise period

5 years from Date of Vesting

31-03-2024 31-03-2023
(Rs. In Lakhs}| (Rs, In Lakhs)
Employee compensation expense 837 1277
Employees Siock Oplion Outstanding AJc 29.06 20.70

Tetal expense is recognized under 'employes benefits expense'

Employee stock oplions details as on the balance sheel date are as follows:

Particulars

During the year ended
31 March, 2024

During the year ended
31 March, 2023

the end of the year

Options Weighted Options | Weighted
{Numbers) average (Numbers)| average
exercise price exercise
per option price per
option
ESOP A
Option outstanding at the beainning of the year: 7.60,500 10,00 | 4,40,000 -
Gramnted during the year - 3,37,500 10,00
Vested during the year 217,500 - 1.26.900
Exercised during the year =
Lapsed during the year 1,29 500 - 17,000 -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 6,531,000 10.00 7.60,500 10.00
Options available for grant 3.24.102 10.00 1,04 602 10,00
The weighted average share price at the date of - = &
exercise for stock options exercised during the year
Range of exercise price for options outstanding at £,31,000 10.00 760,500 10.00

Lthe end of the year

Particulars During the year ended During the year ended
Options Weighted Options | Weighted
{Numbers) average (Numbers)| average
exercise price exercise
per option price per
option
ESOP B
Option oulstanding at the beginning of the year: 30,000 10.00 =
Granted during the year - 30,000 10.00
Vested during the year 9.000 E
Exercised during the year =
Lapsed duning the year - .
Options outstanding at the end of the year 30,000 10.00 30,000 10.00
Ciptions avallable for grant 20 04,608 10,00 | 20,04 008 10,00
The waolghted average share price ol the date of] =
exercise for stock options exereised during the year
Range of exerciae prica for options outatanding at Ao, 000 10.00 30,000 10.00

39 PREVIOUS YEAR COMPARATIVES

Previous year's figures have been regroupedireclassified wherever necessary, lo conform le current yean s classification
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Credit Wise Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

43 (a) Intangible Asset under develoj t ageing schedul
Rs. In Lakhs
As at 31 March 2024
Amount in |IAUD for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3years |More than 3 Total
years
Projects in progress
Dala Warehouse 54.11 n.re 85 87
Disbursemen! Module 830 822 14.51
Dashboard Module - 16.59 147 - NN
Finance Module 16.59 14.08 - 30.67
Dealer Module 16.59 1471 - 313
Repossession Module 16.59 1471 - HiHN
Insurance Module - 4.15 298 - 13
Co-lending and Parinership Module - 415 2.98 - 713
Dharat Dikes 11017 20.40 - - 130.57
Tolal (A) 11047 157.48 102.16 369.80
Modules hald for sale
Google App Store 181.34
Customer Service App 18071
RCU (Risk Containment Unit) Module 151.95
Pre-defiquency Module 15.65
Callection Module 15.65
Lepal Module 13.88
Total (B) 559.19
Total (A+B) 928.99

(b) Na Intangible assets under development are overdue for completion

(c] The cost of the medules include the services of independent soflware developers and the employee cost contribution based on the management's
judgemant towards development of the Intangible Asset

(d) The Company has sold the "Credit and Underwriting module” in the current year to its Subsidiary "Analylics Fox Private Limited” and has decided to sell

piecemeal its modules of other intangible asset under development to the subsidiary company. Consequently, these modules have been earmarked under

Intangible Assets under development as "Assets held for sale” The modules will be sold as they are developed and completed in the coming years

Intangible Asset ageing schedule Rs. In Lakhs
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Amount in IAUD for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years  |More than 3
Projects in progress
Data Warehouse 5411 NT7 - - 8587
Disbursement Module 830 6.22 14.51
Diashboard Module 16.59 14.71 - a1y
Finance Module 16.59 14.08 30.67
Dealer Maodule 16.59 1471 31.31
Repossession Module 16.58 1471 313
Insurance Module 4.15 2.98 713
Co-ending and Partnership Module 4.15 298 713
Bharat Bikes 2040 - - 20.40
Taolal (A) 157.48 102.16 - - 259.64
|Modules held for sale
Google App Store 181.34
Customer Service App 180.71
Cradit and Underwnting Module 150.37
RCU (Risk Contaiment Unit) Module 151.95
Pre-deliquency Module 15.65
Collection Module 15.65
Legal Module 13.88
Tolal (B) 709.56
Total E - 968.20




44 Short term Loans and Advances
The company is in process of recavery of a Trade advance of Rs 50,02 lakhs to a dealer which is outstanding for more than 18 months.

45 Other Current Assets
In Note No 18, Other receivables includes an excess inlerest amount of Rs. 48.53 lakhs charged by a lender. The company is in process of recovering this
amount.

48 Impact of change in Accounting Policy
The company has changed its provisioning policy during the FY 2022-24 and brought it in alignment with the RBI Regulations

Impact il uld policy was being followed

Amaount
old Arrear Period % of provision |(Rs. In Lakhs)
Standard Assel Overdue for less than 181 days 0.25 30.95
Sub-Standard (Nen-performing Asset) | Overdue for more than laﬁ-davs 25 83.09
Actual impact on following new policy
Amount
New Arrear Period % of provision| [(Rs. In Lakhs)
Standard Asset Overdue for less than 151 days 0.25 30.86
Sub-Standard (Mon-performing Asset)  |Overdue for more than 150 days 10 -14.71
Net Impact in Profit and Loss account due to change in accounting policy
Particulars ¥ Amount
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Met decrease in provisions due fo change in accounting policy 97.89

47 The Reserve Bank of India had issued the Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs (the framework) vide circular
REBIf2021-22/112 DOR.CRE.REC.No0.60/03,10.001/2021-22 on October 22, 2021, The framework categonses NBFCs in Base Layer (NBFC-BL), Middle
Layer (NBFC-ML}, Upper Layer (NBFC-UL) and Top Layer (NBFC-TL). The Reserve Bank of India vide press release 2022-2023/975 dated September 30,
2022 has placed the Company in the Base Layer,

48 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invesled (either from bormowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign enlity (" Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or atherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enliies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company ("Ulimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

49 The Company has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the agoregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(‘Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benaficiaries,

50 Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied wilh the number of layers prescrbed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017

51 Undisclosed income
There are no transactions, which have been disclosed as income in the assessment under the IT Act,

52 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company
The Company does not possess any immovable property, Hence, this disclosura is not applicable.,

53 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not fraded or invested in Crypto curreney or Virtual currency dunng the financial years ended March 31 2024 and March 31, 2023

54 Details of Benami Property Held
Mo proceedings have been inlialed or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
{45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

55 Wilful Defaulter
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaclions (Prohibilion) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

56 Relationship with Struck off Companies
There are no ransactions with companies whose names have been struck off under seclion 248 of Companies Acl. 2012 or seclion 560 of Companies Act,
1856 in the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, as confirmed by the management of the company.




57 Utilisation of Borrowed Tunds and share premium
The Company, as parl of its normal business, grants loans and advances to its customers. These transactions are part of Company's normal non-banking
finance business , which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements.
Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been uliised (either from borrowed fund or share premium) for purpose other than business
transactions,

As per our report of even date

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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Place : MUMBAI
Date : 10-06-2024
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